

#### Parent Handbook 2023-2024

Revised: February 2023

Glebe Community Centre 175 Third Avenue Ottawa, ON K1S 2K2 613-233-9708

www.glebepreschool.com info@glebepreschool.com

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

GLEBE COOPERATIVE NURSERY SCHOOL: PROGRAM STATEMENT	3
EDUCATORS' RESPONSIBILITIES	7
DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	7
HISTORY	9
WHAT IS A CO-OPERATIVE NURSERY SCHOOL?	9
MEMBERSHIP RESPONSIBILITIES	9
WHAT SETS US APART?	9
GCNS PROGRAMS	10
THE REGISTRATION PROCESS	10
Age Requirements	11
Registration Fees	11
Tuition Payments	11
Registering with the City of Ottawa Child Care Registry	11
Fee Subsidies	11
Acceptance Notification	12
Waitlist	12
Withdrawal	12
GCNS Members and Staff Conduct Policy	13
SCHOOL ENVIRONMENT	14
CLASSROOM ENVIRONMENT	14
THE STAFF	15
DAILY ROUTINE	16
FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL	16
What to bring:	16
Mabel's Labels	17
Considerations around pick up	17
Snack	17
SANDBOX PARENT PORTAL	17
News	18
Messages	18
Child Info	18
Calendar	18
Contacts	19
THE BACKBONE OF THE GCNS: YOU!!	20
A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS	20
B. BOARD LIAISONS	20
C. COMMUNICATION	20
FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS	22

# GLEBE COOPERATIVE NURSERY SCHOOL: PROGRAM STATEMENT

The Glebe Cooperative Nursery School's philosophy and programming is based on the document *How Does Learning Happen?* This resource is a key component of the Ministry of Education's vision for the early years. The program is centered on the child and the family. The four foundations must be present in order for children to grow and flourish:

<u>Belonging</u> refers to the relationships that a child develops. These are relationships with other children, their families, educators, and the world around them.

<u>Well-being</u> refers to the important aspects of their physical and mental health and wellness. <u>Engagement</u> is when a child is involved and focused. They need to be able to explore the world around them.

<u>Expression or</u> communication incorporates both the ability to be heard and to listen. This may be in the form of artistic expression.

The goal of our program is to provide a positive learning experience, a social experience, and to encourage the development of the whole child. We want to lay the foundation for a lifelong love of learning. We want the children to view school as a positive place. We want them to learn to love finding out new things, to learn how to make friends and to learn that adults, other than their parents, can be fun, caring and trusting.

Children are considered competent, capable of complex thinking, curious and rich in potential.

### A. Our goal is to promote the health, safety, nutrition and well-being of the children by:

- Encouraging parents to offer snacks based on Canada's Food Guide and providing a list of healthy snack suggestions.
- Posting snacks on the bulletin board outside the classroom for parents to view.
- Encouraging the children to try new foods.
- Safety is our first priority. We are ever vigilant in making our classroom safe for all children by providing age appropriate toys, setting up the room in a way that allows children to move freely about the space and being observant in the class.
- Educators are posted in the playground in order to watch the gates, observe from all areas and ratios are maintained unless a child needs to be brought to the bathroom.
- Educators count the children before they leave the playground, and before they leave the front vestibule of the community centre. When we are going to the main hall educators count the children before leaving the classroom, and again when we are at the top of the stairs before entering the main hall. When practicing a fire drill, educators count the children before leaving the classroom, when they reach their destination, and again upon arrival back in the classroom.
- Educators operate and maintain the environment in compliance with the Child Care and Early Years Act, fire, safety and health regulations.
- Children are observed at drop off time to see if they are well enough to attend Nursery School and educators are required to initial on the attendance that a visual check was completed.
- Allowing children the opportunity to take risks, experience success at challenges, develop a sense

of self, and develop self-help skills will enhance their sense of well being.

# B. We support positive and responsive interactions among children, parents, child care providers and staff by:

- We believe that the Nursery School is an optimal experience for children to socialize with other children and with adults outside their family. We encourage children to converse with one another, listen to one another and to have an opportunity to play and learn in small and large group settings.
- It is during circle time that children have an opportunity to express themselves in a small group setting, to discuss their likes and dislikes, to contribute to the group, to develop a sense of self and to learn how to listen to others. This is also an opportunity for children to reflect on their experiences of the day or of any special guests that we may have had.
- We want the children to feel confident in saying "This is my school".

# C. We encourage children to interact and communicate in a positive way and support their ability to self-regulate. We want every child to feel comfortable in the room and able to express themselves in a positive manner.

- Educators discover each child's uniqueness and work to help them express themselves.
- Educators model appropriate ways to; ask for a turn, ask to share a toy, ask for help, decline an offer of help, how to enter a group activity, wait for their turn.
- Educators use different responses to children's behaviour. Some children need time by themselves, others need to be held, some need to talk things through, some will understand an explanation and others need to cry first and come back to play on their own.
- We try to provide a familiar daily routine on a regular basis. We may include changes to the routine but try to introduce these ahead of time or with an explanation.

#### D. We want the children to explore their surroundings, ask questions and be free to play and learn.

- Educators organize the space, equipment and materials so that the children may begin play as soon as they enter the room.
- Children are free to move about the room and can play in any area. There is no limit on the number of children in each area.
- Educators ask questions and encourage the children to ask questions as well. Educators may answer the questions directly or they may have another child answer or may promote a group discussion.
- Children are encouraged to explore, touch and use materials in a variety of ways. They may bring materials from one area to another. Materials that use all senses are provided.
- Include materials that provide an introduction to numeracy and literacy.

### E. Our programming is child initiated with Educator support

- Activities are child centered. We observe, listen and document the children's play to help us determine how our room will be set up. We provide a large variety of materials which allow each child to discover an area that supports their interest and development. Children are free to choose the area that they wish to use. The Educators encourage creativity, imagination, social interactions and inquiry.
- Educators prepare programming based on the children's interests which help to develop their

social, physical, intellectual, creative and emotional abilities.

• Programming and materials may be carried over from day to day or week to week if the children are interested in doing so. For example, Lego construction could be left out for next time to be added to, activities could include planting or science activities that require a longer examination and children may ask for certain items or certain activities to be repeated during circle time.

# F. We want to have a positive learning environment that reflects the uniqueness of each child

- Educator's programming meets the overall needs of each child, respecting religious, cultural, family backgrounds and special needs.
- We support a child's growing sense of self. Our programming allows each child to develop a sense of self by discovering their own unique interests and abilities. We want to see children succeed and to maintain a healthy attitude.

#### G. Our daily schedule reflects the need for indoor/outdoor play; quiet/active play.

- Children are involved in gross motor activities by using the outside play yard and the large indoor gym area.
- We start our day outside weather-permitting for both classes.
- Our temperature guideline for outdoor play: Winter cut-off (including wind chill); we do not go outside when it is -15°C or colder for the Toddler Program and -20°C or colder for the Preschool Program. Please check the following website to verify the outdoor temperature:

https://weather.gc.ca/city/pages/on-118\_metric\_e.html

- We have use of the main hall for gross motor activities from 11:00 11:30 am. This includes the use of ride-on cars, balls, hoops, slides and a large space to safely run around.
- The preschool class will take part in walks around the community on occasion. Parents will be notified prior to the day of the walk. A rope with individual handles will be used and all teachers will go on walks.
- Large group activities include stories, music and movement. The preschool class also breaks into small groups and one Educator and focuses on numeracy, literacy, science and social activities.

# H. We want to maintain open communication with parents regarding their children and the program.

- We are a cooperative nursery school. Parents are an important part of the Nursery School. The Educators work with parents to provide a quality program.
- A newsletter is posted on Sandbox at the beginning of each month.
- We bridge the gap between home and school by providing parents with anecdotal observations and pictures of their child and these are posted on Sandbox.
- At drop off and pick up the Educators will have the opportunity to have a quick chat about how your child is doing in the classroom, and how they are adjusting to school. If you would like to speak in more depth, and perhaps without your child present, feel free to ask for a meeting outside of these times, and the Educators will work with you to schedule a time that works best with everyone's

schedule.

#### I. Educators are encouraged to pursue professional development opportunities

- Information regarding workshops is passed on to them
- There is a set amount for professional development in the Educator's contracts.
- Educators must maintain up to date Standard First Aid and CPR.

# J. All of the above must be reviewed on an ongoing basis. There must be documentation to support the reviews.

- In order to determine the outcome of the above strategies and goals, there will be a yearly program evaluation in the form of a survey. This will be a survey that is drawn up by the Board, presented to the parents, done anonymously and reviewed by the Board members. The questions on this document will include those on programming, room setup, staff evaluations, communication and allows for suggestions for improvement.
- This statement is included in the **Monitoring Compliance Policy**.
- Other key achievement indicators include:
  - Children are visibly happy, nurtured and are developing to their potential
  - Parent complaints are minimized through prompt and effective service
  - An effective team of teachers that have implemented a program that meets the philosophies and standards of the school.

# **EDUCATORS' RESPONSIBILITIES**

- We are to cultivate caring relationships among and between children, adults, and the world around them.
- Nurture the child's healthy development and support their growing sense of self.
- Provide environments and experiences to engage children in meaningful exploration.
- Foster communication and expression in all forms.
- Provide documentation to help parents understand how their children are learning.
- Create an environment that welcomes families
- Teachers are encouraged to attend workshops or classes in order to continue their professional learning. Within each staff member contract there is an amount for professional development.
- Each staff member shall be certified in Standard First Aid with infant and child CPR.
- Each staff member will provide a Police check for the vulnerable sector. This check is valid for 5 years. In the years that a check is not submitted, an offence of declaration will be signed. This written declaration will state whether or not a person has been convicted of any offences under the Criminal Code of Canada since their last Police check.
- All staff will review the Program Statement yearly and sign their copy.

# **DESCRIPTION OF DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES**

- Plans and conducts a stimulating and effective curriculum that meets the overall needs of each child, respecting religious, cultural, family backgrounds and special needs and looks for ways to improve program quality.
- Prepares programming based on the children's interests which provide a wide variety of social, creative, emotional, intellectual and physical activities.
- Organizes space, equipment and materials prior to activities.
- Utilizes a variety of teaching techniques including modelling, observing, questioning, demonstrating and reinforcing.
- Provides experiences which promote language, self-expression, imagination, creativity and problem solving.
- Conducts continuous observation and evaluation of the program to ensure that standards and needs of children and parents are met.
- Operates the program and maintains the environment in compliance with the Child Care Early Years Act, fire, safety and health regulations.
- Adheres to the Policy for Prohibited practices.
- Abides by the operating policies and procedures of the Nursery School.
- Keeps abreast of current trends in early childhood education and takes advantage of professional development opportunities.
- Represents the school in a professional manner while working with other organizations.
- Works cooperatively as a team member within the program and within the school as a whole to ensure that a high quality program is provided for all the children.
- Accepts other work styles, adjusts accordingly and displays a positive outlook and pleasant manner.

- Offers assistance and support to co-workers and indicates when help from other team members is needed.
- Actively participates in staff meetings, shares information gained through workshops, visits to other centres, professional readings, etc.
- Develops and maintains open communication with parents to create a warm welcoming attitude and to develop a partnership rapport.
- Ensures that parents receive adequate information about their children through daily contact, bulletin boards, newsletters and written notes.
- Acts as a resource to parents regarding child development and services available in the community.
- Responds in a timely manner to requests from the Program Coordinator, team members, executive members or parents. Recognizes and assumes responsibility for one's own actions.
- Manages time effectively and maintains commitments and appointments without delay or reminders.
- Meets attendance and punctuality requirements by arriving and leaving on time. Requests and schedules time off in advance and according to established procedures.
- Submits time sheets
- Attends the Orientation Meeting. Teachers will be paid accordingly.
- Participate in annual Performance Review

### **HISTORY**

The Glebe Co-operative Nursery School began in September 1977 as a parent-child playgroup. Over the years, the playgroup evolved into a preschool staffed by professional early childhood educators ("ECE"). The school was incorporated in January of 1982, necessitating the development of bylaws and operating policies to govern its organization and management. First licensed under the **Day Nurseries Act** in November of 1988, the school is reviewed annually by the Ministry of Education to ensure that all standards are maintained.

#### WHAT IS A CO-OPERATIVE NURSERY SCHOOL?

A co-operative nursery school is a non-profit organization made up of volunteer parents who come together to manage and participate in a school for their children. Through ongoing participation, parents have the opportunity to share and be involved in their child's first school experience. The school is incorporated under the Co-operative Corporations Act and is governed by its own by-laws.

A Board of Directors, made up of volunteer parents and elected on an annual basis, manages the school. The school's teachers report to the Board of Directors.

#### MEMBERSHIP RESPONSIBILITIES

Members of the Co-operative are entitled to elect the Board of Directors and receive and approve the minutes of General Meetings, as well as the annual Financial Report. Each registered family has one vote on issues brought forward to Special or General Meetings of the Membership. Members are obliged to abide by the by-laws and policies of the school.

As a Member you are required to perform at least one volunteer job per year as well as Parent Duty Days. Other requirements include the payment of all fees, keeping children at home when ill with a communicable disease, participating in General Meetings and fundraising.

The success of the school depends on the active and ongoing participation of all of our members.

# WHAT SETS US APART?

The Glebe Co-operative Nursery School is located in the fully accessible Glebe Community Centre in the heart of our community. The children in our school learn about and explore their world in our bright and spacious classroom. Furthermore, our students have access to the main hall in the community centre and access to an outdoor play area year-round. Our fully fenced yard is equipped with a variety of materials to provide opportunities for gross motor and social experiences. We have exclusive use of this yard when we have outside playtime.

# **GCNS PROGRAMS**

The school offers the following two classes according to age and interests:

Program	Days	Time	Age	Class Size	Tuition Fees (per month)
Toddler	Tues & Thurs	8:30-11:30am	1.5-2.5 years	15	\$13.76/day*
Preschool	Mon/Wed/Fri	8:30-11:30am	2.5-4.5 years	24	\$12.13/day*

<sup>\*</sup>IMPORTANT NOTICE: We are enrolled in the Canada-Wide Early Learning and Child Care Program (CWELCC); the rates reflect a reduction of our previous fees by 53% (or to the threshold of \$12/day). By September 2025, fees are expected to be an average of \$10 per day.

<u>Toddler Program:</u> Children eager to play will enjoy the learning activities in their first entry into early education. Wonderful, loving teachers, a bright cheery environment, and lots of learning opportunities provide a happy start to learning and socializing.

<u>Preschool Program:</u> Through independent engagement in stimulating activities, and directed learning time with Educators in small groups, preschool children develop the social, physical, intellectual, and creative skills that form the foundation for success in their ongoing education. The morning program is an excellent way of preparing for junior kindergarten.

#### ~ STATUTORY HOLIDAYS ~

The school will be closed on Thanksgiving, Family Day, Good Friday, Easter Monday, and Victoria Day. It also follows the Ottawa-Carleton District School Board's and Ottawa Catholic School Board's Christmas, March Break and summer holidays, unless otherwise specified.

### THE REGISTRATION PROCESS

The GCNS maintains a waitlist for the current year and does not carry over the waitlist from year to year. Applications for admission are accepted in March. Current Members (those who have children enrolled in the school for the current school year) receive first priority for a spot in the program of their choice for the next school year. This priority applies to children currently enrolled and their siblings. After spots have been allotted to Current Members, Returning Members (those members who have had children enrolled in the past but do not currently have a child enrolled) are offered spots in the program. Any open spots after this time are offered to New Members. In the event that there are insufficient open spots to meet demand, places in the programs are filled by means of a lottery. If, at any stage of the process there are more applicants than spots, allocation is determined by lottery.

### **Age Requirements**

Children must meet the age requirement for a program as of the first day of school in September. However, the GCNS has special flexibility within its licence to allow up to four enrolled in the Preschool Program to be under the minimum age. In the toddler group up to three students can be between 16 to 18 months. This flexibility is used **only** if there are no children of age to fill a vacancy within the program. The school maintains an underage waiting list for each of the programs. Acceptance of underage children is at the discretion of the GCNS teachers and the Board.

#### Toilet learning:

It is not necessary for your child to be independently using the toilet to attend the Nursery School.

#### Cloth Diapers:

At this time, we cannot accommodate cloth diapers due to stringent cleaning and hygiene requirements. Please send your child in disposable diapers.

# **Registration Fees**

A **non-refundable** Registration/Membership fee (one per family) of **\$18.90** is due to confirm registration to the preschool. The cheque or e-transfer for the registration fee is due once a family has been accepted into the school.

## **Tuition Payments**

Fees are paid two months in advance. Fees can be paid by e-transfer or post-dated cheques by request.

#### E-Transfer:

We accept e-transfers when paying July 1st (the first four months of school) and November 1st (the second six months of school). We cannot accept e-transfers for monthly payments. You will receive an invoice prior to the due date with payment instructions.

### Registering with the City of Ottawa Child Care Registry

In order for us to complete your application, you will need to select our nursery school as your child care centre of choice on the City of Ottawa Child Care Registry (formerly known as the centralized waitlist), in order to meet new Ministry requirements.

Please access the City of Ottawa Child Care Registry at: <a href="www.onehsn.com/Ottawa">www.onehsn.com/Ottawa</a>

If you are new to the Registry, you will need to set up an account and enter your child's information. In the Program Selection section, please select <u>Nursery Preschool /Co-op Based</u> under the Provider Type. You can then select <u>Glebe Co-operative Nursery School Inc</u>. This process should only take about 5-10 minutes.

#### **Fee Subsidies**

If you require a fee subsidy, select the 'Subsidy' button in your application on the Child Care Registry. Complete instructions for applying for a subsidy may be found at:

https://ottawa.ca/en/residents/social-services/childrens-services/get-help-your-child-care-costs.

There are five types of documents plus a Rights and Responsibilities/Consent form to submit to the City in order to apply for a subsidy. You can submit these by email to CCRAW-RELAGE@ottawa.ca or

in person at the Community and Social Support Centre nearest you.

We cannot place a child in the program until the fee subsidy application has been approved by the City. Please ensure that you have submitted your fee subsidy application in good time to avoid delays in registration. The **minimum** estimated time to process a fee subsidy application, once the City has received all necessary documentation, is about two weeks.

# **Acceptance Notification**

Applicants will be informed by mid-April of their acceptance, or their position on the waitlist, for their requested program. All acceptance and waitlist notifications will be sent **via e-mail** and Applicants must verify that they have received the notice and confirm that they will be taking the offered program spot or would like to remain on the waitlist. Only those Applicants who do not respond to the e-mail will be telephoned.

#### Waitlist

We receive many expressions of interest in our programs outside of the Registration Period. A waitlist for the **current school year only** is maintained by the Registrar and families will be notified in order **via e-mail** if a place becomes available. Please notify the Registrar at

registrar@glebepreschool.com if you find other care and no longer need to be on the waitlist.

#### Withdrawal

A member may withdraw from the GCNS by giving a minimum of two (2) months' written notice by letter or by e-mail to the Registrar at <a href="mailto:registrar@glebepreschool.com">registrar@glebepreschool.com</a> ("Notice Period"). The notice period must begin at the start of the month.

For example, if a withdrawal notice is given October 15, the two months' notice will take effect November 1 and end December 31. Whether or not the member's child continues to attend school, the member will be required to pay tuition for the two-month Notice Period. For withdrawals received after March 31, no refunds will be given for the remaining tuition of the school year.

Please note that although school begins in September, tuition is paid two months in advance from July 1st onwards. Members are considered enrolled in school as of July 1 and so must withdraw before July 1 in order to avoid having to give two months' written notice or pay tuition for the Notice Period.

Members will be responsible for any fees charged to GCNS resulting from not sufficient funds (NSF) tuition payments or registration cheques.

The Glebe Co-operative Nursery School reserves the right to determine each child's suitability for continued enrolment. The Board has the right to withdraw a child from the Nursery School if:

- ❖ Payment of the monthly tuition fees are not up-to-date
- ❖ After consultation with the parents, it is determined that the program is not suitable for the child
- ❖ A Member is in contravention of the GCNS Conduct Policy

# **GCNS Members and Staff Conduct Policy**

The Glebe Cooperative Nursery School is committed to providing an environment in which all individuals are treated with respect and dignity. Further, we expect and encourage high standards of positive communication amongst parents, and between parents and teachers.

Harassment and discrimination will not be tolerated from any person. Harassment, as it pertains to this policy includes but is not limited to:

- Engaging in a course of vexatious comment or conduct against a member, staff or volunteer in the preschool -- a comment or conduct that is known or ought reasonably to be known to be unwelcome
- Any vexatious comment (including communication both verbal and non-verbal) written or not, whether intended to harm or not, is considered harassment.
- Harassment may also relate to a form of discrimination as set out in the Ontario Human Rights Code, but it does not have to.

If a parent, guardian or teacher feels uncomfortable, threatened, abused, or belittled due to actions that relate to school proceedings, they should immediately end the conversation and report the situation to the President of the Board of Directors.

If the complaint is against the President, it should be reported to the Vice President. It is the responsibility of the President and/or Vice President, in consultation with the Board, to investigate and deal with complaints of harassment in a fair and timely manner while respecting individual privacy. Recourse may include:

- a letter of warning, or
- immediate dismissal from the membership of the Cooperative

Nothing in this policy prevents or discourages members or teachers from filing an application with the Human Rights Tribunal on a matter related to Ontario's Human Rights Code within one year of the last alleged incident. Members or teachers also retain the right to exercise any other legal avenues that may be available.

#### SCHOOL ENVIRONMENT

The school's classroom, located within the Glebe Community Centre, is organized into activity areas. Classroom goals are met by providing the children with an opportunity to explore and experience the world around them at carefully planned learning centres. These learning centres allow the children to choose their own activities and to work and play independently or in small groups at their own pace and ability level. Learning centres include special areas for reading, science and discovery, dramatic, cognitive toys, blocks, sensory exploration and art. Our programming is based on the Ministry of Education's Document "How Does Learning Happen?"

http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/childcare/HowLearningHappens.pdf

The morning begins in our outdoor play yard, weather permitting, or inside the classroom. Following snack, a period of free play in the classroom, the children and Educators tidy up the classroom and then participate in a small/large group circle.

The Toddler Program incorporates a large group circle in which the children participate in singing, dancing, stories and directed learning activities. The toddler children end their morning by enjoying a half hour of gross motor exercise in the Glebe Community Centre main hall.

The Preschool Program incorporates a small group time which consists of an Educator focusing on numeracy, science, social, and language and literacy activities. During inclement weather when the preschool children are unable to use the play yard, they will have the opportunity to enjoy a half hour of gross motor exercise in the Glebe Community Centre main hall. On occasion the preschool class will take short walks around the community. Parents will be notified prior to the day of the walk. The children hold onto a rope with individual handles and all three teachers and duty parent/caregiver supervise the walk.

Each child will have an individual cubby outside of the classroom, labelled with their name and a picture of themselves. Upon drop-off all bags, coats, and toys from home etc. are left there. The child's cup for the day is put on a table located directly inside the door of the classroom.

#### CLASSROOM ENVIRONMENT

We meet our goals in the classroom by providing carefully planned learning centres that give the children a wide range of learning experiences and materials. These learning centres allow the children to choose their own activities and to work and play independently or in small groups at their own pace and ability level.

# **BLOCK AREA/FLOOR TOY**

- · To encourage creativity by taking apart, sorting and stacking, assembling and building various constructions.
- · To promote language, math, fine motor, and coordination skills.

#### DRAMATIC PLAY:

- · To encourage role-playing.
- · To build self-confidence and self-esteem.
- · To provide practice in dressing and undressing skills.

- · To develop language and expressive skills.
- · To encourage dramatic play, social interaction and self-expression.
- · To stimulate language and discourse skills.

#### ART AREA:

- · To encourage individual expression and creativity.
- · To offer opportunities to explore a variety of media in a variety of ways.
- · To develop a sense of personal accomplishment.
- · To enhance fine motor and visual perception skills.

#### **SENSORY TABLES:**

- · To provide tactile-sensory stimulation.
- · To help children use their senses for investigation.
- To develop problem solving skills.
- · To promote verbal expression, socialization, and emotional relaxation.

#### **SCIENCE & DISCOVERY AREA:**

- · To stimulate cognitive development by encouraging children to reason, analyze, explore and classify.
- · To develop assimilation and accommodation of the world around them.
- · To enhance problem solving, classification, and discrimination skills.
- · For the Educator to work with individual children or small groups to reinforce specific concepts.
- · For children to work independently with materials that will enhance cognitive skills.

#### **BOOK AREA:**

- · To promote language and reading readiness skills.
- · To develop an appreciation for literature.

#### COGNITIVE:

- · To develop eye-hand coordination and visual perception skills.
- · To enhance problem solving and classification skills.
- · To develop pre-reading and pre-math skills.
- · To develop social skills as children take turns, share and help each other.

#### THE STAFF

Director/Head Teacher (RECE), two (or 3) Registered Early Childhood Educators

#### Educators' responsibilities

- -Cultivate caring relationships among and between children, adults and the world around them.
- -Nurture the child's healthy development and support their growing sense of self.
- -Provide environments and experiences to engage children in meaningful exploration.
- -Foster communication and expression in all forms.
- -Provide documentation to help parents and the child understand how they are learning.
- -Create an environment that welcomes families

# **DAILY ROUTINE**

#### **Preschool**

8:30 - 9:30 A.M. Outdoor Play

9:30 - 9:45 A.M. Coat room/Handwashing

9:45 - 11:00 A.M. Free play/tidy up/handwashing/snack

11:00 - 11:20 A.M. Small group circle

11:20 - 11:30 A.M. Coatroom/Home time

#### <u>Preschool - inclement weather</u>

8:30 - 9:30 Freeplay

9:30 - 9:50 Handwashing and Snack

9:50 - 10:30 Freeplay

10:30 - 10:40 Tidy up

10:40 - 11:00 Circle

11:00 - 11:30 Main Hall/Home Time

#### **Toddler**

8:30 - 9:15 A.M. Outdoor play

9:15 - 9:30 A.M. Coat room/handwashing

9:30 - 9:45 Snack

9:45 - 10:35 Freeplay

10:35 - 10:45 Tidy up

10:45 - 11:00 Circle

11:00 - 11:30 Main Hall/Home Time

#### <u>Toddler - inclement weather</u>

8:30 - 9:30 Freeplay

9:30 - 9:50 Handwashing and Snack

9:50 - 10:35 Freeplay

10:35 - 10:45 Tidy up

10:45 - 11:00 Circle

11:00 - 11:30 Main Hall/Home Time

#### FIRST DAY OF SCHOOL

#### What to bring:

- ❖ Shoes: Children must bring shoes or slippers to wear indoors and they will remain at school. We will let you know when your child outgrows them so you can replace them.
- Beverage cup/water bottle: Every child is required to bring a cup or water bottle to school daily. They will be returned daily for washing.
- ❖ Change of clothes: For those messy days, or in case of spills or toilet accidents. A basket will be provided for your child's clothes so that they may remain at the school inside the washroom.
- \* Backpacks or bags: To carry items to and from school, such as cups, artwork, etc., please choose a backpack that is appropriate for your child to carry themselves.

- ❖ Disposable diapers and wipes: These are kept in your child's basket in the washroom. Educators will let you know when we need these items replenished by leaving a note in your child's backpack. Please note we are unable to accommodate cloth diapers.
- Photographs: Two photos of your child; one for the photo book and the second for your child's coat hook. A family photo and additional photos of your choice for your child's individual sized photo album. 4 x 6 or smaller is a great size.
- Security toys or objects: Your child may wish to bring a special toy or object that they use in times of stress. Please refrain from bringing other toys to avoid sharing difficulties or misplaced toys.
- \* Record of immunization: please email to helen@glebepreschool.com.
- \* Photo consent form: please email to helen@glebepreschool.com.

It is very important that you **LABEL ALL ITEMS** that are brought to school with your child's name. This will help everyone locate and properly put away items that belong to your child (cups, shoes, etc.).

#### Mabel's Labels

The preschool is registered with Mabel's Labels (<a href="https://mabelslabels.ca/en\_CA/">https://mabelslabels.ca/en\_CA/</a>) as a fundraiser for the school. Parents can select "Glebe Cooperative Nursery School" under "Support a Fundraiser."

# Considerations around pick up

- **Separation anxiety:** This can be a difficult issue for both children and parents. The teachers are experienced professionals and will work with you and your child to settle into the school during this transition period.
- **Promptness at Pick-up:** Promptness at pick-up time of the children is important. Program hours are 8:30 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. Staff are not responsible for children outside of program hours.
- **Approved Pick-up:** The school maintains a list of family members, friends and caregivers who are authorized to pick up your child. Verbal and written authorization must be given to staff if the child is to be picked up by persons other than those pre-approved.
- **Special Celebrations:** The staff makes an effort to teach the children about the many holidays and special days that are practiced by people around the world. If your family celebrates a particular holiday that you would like to have shared in the class, please talk with the Educators.

#### **Snack**

Parent volunteers are asked to bring a nutritious, nut-free snack for the class on their duty day. Water is provided to drink.

Please be advised that the Glebe Co-operative Nursery School is a <u>peanut and nut-free environment</u>. **Birthdays:** Elaborate parties are discouraged, but special treats can be brought in for a snack by their parents.

### SANDBOX PARENT PORTAL

The GCNS now uses Sandbox Software to help manage the registration and daily activities of the

school. Sandbox Software has a **Parent Portal** that enables parents/guardians to manage information for their family as well as keep up with regular updates and pictures of their children.

Prior to the start of the new school year, we will be sending you a link to set up your account on the Parent Portal. Please follow the instructions below to create your account using the link that was emailed to you:

- 1. Your email address is automatically set as the email address that you have given to us. This is used to uniquely identify you and cannot be changed.
- 2. Create a password.
- 3. Confirm your password.
- 4. Click Create Account to create your account.

Once you have created your account, you will be logged in immediately. In the future, you will need to login to your account directly from the Parent Portal website, **parentportal.runsandbox.com**.

#### **Parent Portal Instructions**

- 1) Click on the icons to navigate from one section to another.
- 2) When you are finished using the Parent Portal, make sure to click the Log Out button to prevent anyone else from accessing your account, especially if you are not using your personal mobile phone, tablet, laptop, or desktop computer.

#### News

When you login to the Parent Portal you will be brought to the **Newsfeed** section. The Newsfeed is where you will see information that is shared by the Director and teachers such as, messages, monthly newsletter, pictures, and/or announcements.

#### Messages

The **Messages** section enables you to communicate with the teachers privately. Currently you are not able to select a specific teacher to message, so the messages will be viewed by any of the authorized staff

#### **Child Info**

In the **Child Info** section, you can view information for your child. You can add or edit information about your child by clicking on the Edit button (pencil) on the far right.

- You can only edit information if the pencil icon is present.
- You can add a picture of the child by clicking on the Upload button.
- You can change pictures for the child by clicking on the existing picture.
- The attachments section enables you to upload documentation.
- If you have more than one child at the same location, you can move from one child to the other by clicking on the child's name.

#### Calendar

The **Calendar** section shows you the days that your child is scheduled to attend. Use the arrows at the top of the calendar (left and right) to navigate between months. You can also add vacation days to inform the teachers when your child will be away.

#### **Contacts**

In the **Contacts** section, you can view information for the guardians, emergency contacts, and the family doctor on your account. You can add new guardians/contacts by clicking the Add Guardian or Add Contact button. You can edit this information by clicking on the Edit button (pencil) on the far right.

Please note: if you have had a child previously registered at GCNS your Sandbox records will need to be merged in order for you to view your youngest child's record. Please notify the Registrar at <a href="mailto:registrar@glebepreschool.com">registrar@glebepreschool.com</a> if you have this issue.

# THE BACKBONE OF THE GCNS: YOU!!

It is important to remember that the GCNS was founded upon, and functions as a result of, an underlying cooperative spirit. The more enthusiasm brought to the school, the greater the benefit for our children. We hope that the GCNS will meet your child's developmental needs and also provide a rewarding place for parents and guardians to work together as a community.

To this end, we ask that each member of the Co-operative contributes to the success of the school by supporting the school in whatever capacity best suits your individual talents. There is a volunteer position for every Member of the Co-operative. The volunteer positions and tasks serve to support the teachers in the day-to-day running of the school program or the work of the GCNS Board of Directors. Members must sign up for one volunteer position. It is the responsibility of each member to find a replacement if they are unable to fulfill their volunteer role. Each family must also select a few mornings per term to help in the classroom and bring the class snack. The Class Representative will distribute the sign up calendar at the beginning of each term and will inform you of the number of mornings required.

In order for our co-operative to function as it does, we ask all families to participate in our fundraising initiatives and events (such as the September Potluck, Winter Festival, and Spring Fling) when government regulations permit social gatherings.

#### A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The GCNS Board of Directors works together, in close co-operation with the school's teachers, to ensure the current and future success of the organization. The members of the Board of Directors are responsible for the operational, financial and personnel policies of the school. The board consists of two Co-Presidents, Vice President, Registrar, Secretary, Treasurer, and Fundraiser.

#### **B. BOARD LIAISONS**

These roles support the work of the Board: Accounts, Newsletter Communication, Communication, Web Support, IT Support, and Class Representatives.

#### C. COMMUNICATION

<u>E-mails</u>: All messages to the membership will be distributed via email. It is vital that you check and read all communications sent via email to receive important reminders and notices. Let us know if your email address changes during the school year.

<u>Monthly Newsletter</u>: Each month, all members will receive a monthly newsletter via Sandbox. The newsletter contains a message from the Educators and important dates for the upcoming month. Please take time to read this newsletter.

Board Meetings and General Meetings: The members of the GCNS are required to attend two

general meetings each year: the Orientation Meeting in August and Annual Members Meeting (AMM) in May. These meetings are an opportunity for members to vote on and discuss issues pertaining to the operations of the co-operative and to raise any questions they might have. Members are also welcome to attend any of the monthly Board of Directors meetings. Please email the President of the Board at <a href="mailto:president@glebepreschool.com">president@glebepreschool.com</a> for dates and times of Board Meetings.

<u>Suggestions</u>: Suggestions can be made directly to the Educators (<a href="https://helen@glebepreschool.com">helen@glebepreschool.com</a>, <a href="https://helen@glebepreschool.com">helen@glebepreschool.com</a>, and board members, either in person or through the contact information provided in the contact handout.

Please make use of these feedback mechanisms – we want to hear from you!

The primary purpose of this **Parent Handbook** is to provide you with an introduction to the history and philosophy of the co-operative. In the meantime, if you have any questions or concerns, please contact the school at (613) 233-9708, email **info@glebepreschool.com** or visit **www.glebepreschool.com** 

# FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

# I am not yet certain whether my child will be ready for nursery school in September. What should I do?

It is best to keep your child's options open. We recommend that families submit applications for their children in order to ensure a place among our registered students or waiting list. If by the end of June, you feel your child is not yet ready to join the school, we simply ask that you inform the Registrar at <a href="mailto:registrar@glebepreschool.com">registrar@glebepreschool.com</a> before July 1st indicating that you have decided to withdraw from the program (otherwise the first two months' fees will be forfeited). You can also try the school for the first few weeks and withdraw if it seems your child is not ready. The children usually surprise their parents by adapting quickly to being on their own!

#### As a member of a Co-operative how much work am I expected to do?

We ask that each member of the GCNS contribute to the success of the school by supporting the school in whatever capacity best suits your individual talents and time allowances. There is a volunteer position for every member of the GCNS, ranging from Board positions to once-a-year tasks. Parents are also asked to volunteer for our fundraising, attend our social events when possible, and attend our Orientation Meeting and Annual Members Meeting. Each member must also volunteer to help in the classroom for Duty Day and bring the class snack.

#### How does the lottery work?

The lottery was established as a means to deal impartially with strong demand for the spaces at our school. If there are more families wanting spots than there are spots available, all families submitting registration packages received before the end of the Registration Period will be entered in the lottery. Board members will meet to draw the names from a box. The lottery occurs in three tiers: Current Members, then Returning Members, then New Member applicants. After the spots in the class are filled, the lottery continues until all families are either awarded a spot in the school or a number on the waiting list.

# I do not currently have a child enrolled at the school, but have been a Member in the past. When do I apply and does my child's application get priority?

You are considered a Returning Member and would apply in March. As a Returning Member you will receive second tier priority in the lottery for any open spaces in the programs. We ask you to indicate on the registration form that you are a past GCNS member.

# If my child receives a number on the waiting list what are the chances they will get a spot by September?

While there are no guarantees, and things change from year to year, like most major cities, Ottawa maintains a transient segment of the population with professionals being transferred frequently.

# What happens if I must withdraw from the school?

It is not unusual for a family to change plans mid-course. Should you need to withdraw from the school, simply inform the Registrar at <a href="mailto:registrar@glebepreschool.com">registrar@glebepreschool.com</a> as soon as you know that you will be leaving. You will be subject to the terms and conditions of the Withdrawal Policy.